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Dr. Jameson Jones, Sophie Jones, Pat Fawdry, B. Caits

Pat Fawdry:
This is Pat Fawdry with Bena Caits.  We're speaking with Mr. Jameson Jones at 1747 Forest in Memphis.  This is June 28th, 1979.  This is part of a project sponsored by Metropolitan Inter-Faith Association with a grant from the Tennessee Committee for the Humanities.  

Dr. Jones, we were interested in, of course, the Evergreen neighborhood, what's now called the Midtown Memphis Improvement Association.  What I'd like to get from you is primarily your connection with the neighborhood from when you moved here.  I'd also like to get on tape your relationship to Southwestern at Memphis and with the Art thing.  Maybe give me the years that you moved here and the years you were connected with those institutions.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
We moved here in 1955 in order to be here in September when the session at Southwestern opened for the '55-'56 session.  
[0:01:00]
We moved from Kentucky.  My wife and I came down in the summer preceding – that's the summer of 1955 – to look for a house.  We wanted to get a home near Southwestern.  I'd gone here as a student and knew something about these neighborhoods, but not a whole lot.  We looked all over this area.
Pat Fawdry:
Come join us.  You wanna come join us?  You may have something to add on, Sophie, unless you're real busy.

Sophie Jones:
[Inaudible Comment]
Pat Fawdry:
This is Bena Caits, Mrs. Jones.
B. Caits:
How are you?  So nice to see you.

Pat Fawdry:
I'm picking his brain right now.  If he's wrong . . . .
B. Caits:
A wife will always let him know.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, both of us – Well, first of all, we looked around for a couple of days and we saw this house that just happened to be for sale because the family had all grown up and scattered.  
[0:02:00]
The last surviving member, whose name happened to be Jones also, Mrs. Jones, was in the hospital in the Terminal Illness and she wanted to sell the house.  It suited us exactly for location.  We spent the summer, sort of, moving in and making some adjustments and repairs, things like that.

Then, I was the academic dean at Southwestern and was there from 1955 to 1972 when I resigned and went over to the Memphis Academy of Arts.  I've been there, on their staff, since 1972.  One of the things I liked about living here was that I could walk to work.  For the years I was at Southwestern, I walked up Forest to where it dead-ends into the zoo, whatever, at McLean, then down McLean and across the street and in front of Snowden School and up Southwestern.
[0:03:00]
After I moved I – after we moved – after I moved from there to the Art Academy, I'd start out the same way except that I turned now on the corner of Hawthorne and go south and I'd either – I had several options.  I can either go down Galloway and the bus lane, pass the zoo and cut up to the Academy, or I can go down one of the other streets that are running east and west between there and Overton Park and walk that way.  Consequently, I'd get a nice walk to the park everyday.  Two or three walks, as a matter of fact.

(Laughter)
B. Caits:
[Inaudible Comment]
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, President, that's the title we use now.  We changed several – 
[0:04:00] 
Well, as a matter of fact, when I seceded Ted Russ, we had talked about it before and we decided it was a good time to change it.  It's a little more understandable title for a college.  A lot people have trouble distinguishing between the art academy and the museum.  They don't know exactly what the art academy is.  Director is a title that fits either museum or lots of other things, but president seems to be a little more of a going title, nowadays, for college people.  We wanted to emphasis the college aspect of the academy.  
Pat Fawdry:
Well isn't it – not unique – unusual as an institution?  Haven't I read that there are very few institutions –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, there are about 16 or 17 professional art colleges across the country, but there are very few in our region.  The nearest one's in Atlanta.  There's one, now, in Louisville and in Cincinnati that are just, as it were, coming on.  There's a strong professional art college in Kansas City, Kansas City Art Institute.  
[0:05:00]
One in Cleveland, Ohio.  Pratt Institute in New York.  Rhode Island School of Design.  San Francisco Art Institute.  Los Angeles College of Art.  There are approximately 16 or 17 of them.
B. Caits:
That's not many.

Pat Fawdry:
No, it's not.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Not too many, no.
B. Caits:
Maybe our sign's up.  What degrees can you get?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
A Bachelor of Fine Arts.  It's just a regular four-year collegiate degree, but it is a professional degree.  About ¾ of the student's work is in studio courses, and about ¼ in liberal arts courses.  
B. Caits:
I didn't know about the liberal arts.  Well, what about the children?  Isn't there an unusual children's program?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well we've had a – I guess, ever since the beginning, in the late 1920s, the academy, which goes back, of course, to earlier manifestations in forms and was located, at one time, down on Adams Street and all that.  
[0:06:00]
It goes way back.  From the beginning, there were classes for children and they have simply continued.  We also have non-credit classes for adults, as well.  The, sort of, community education program is a pretty big par of what's done there.
Pat Fawdry:
It wasn't – in the house on Adams – one of the restored houses?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.  It's – yeah.  
Pat Fawdry:
When was it there?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, it was there from about the late '20s with some intermission.  I'm oversimplifying a little bit because there was some movements away and then back again.  It was there through – that was the center for about 1928 or 1929, up to.  They moved to the Overton Park right after the Second World War.  That would be about 1953 or1954.  
Pat Fawdry:
The academy was built for the – that was its use from the very beginning?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.  

[0:07:00]
The buildings down on Adams, there were two buildings there, the one they called the Fontaine House, and the one next to it on the corner, they called it the Lee House, were both used.  They were in a great state of disrepair and the enrollment was growing and growing, so they, the city, decided to build in the park.
B. Caits:
What is the relationship between the institution and the city as far as financing and support?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
By a contract entered into in the late '20s, the city agreed to take over from Ms. Rosa Lee, who was a descendent of the Lee steamboat people.  The last – I guess, I suppose, the last heir or heiress.  They offered up her home, if it would be used as an art school.  

[0:08:00]  
The city, in accepting that, entered into a contract that they would offer – they would keep the place up and maintain it, if private citizens would furnish the faculty and the instruction and all that.  The city, from that point on, has assumed the responsibility – you might say – for the, sort of, physical maintenance and administration of the art school.  Through private funds and tuition, the educational programs are financed.
B. Caits:
So the faculty and other expenses have to be met.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.
B. Caits:
Wherever you can make them.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, just like any private college.  
B. Caits:
That's an interesting . . . .

Dr. Jameson Jones:
The city appropriates, annually, monies for operation, maintenance, and administrative costs.  We pay the faculty and any other educational expenses out of tuition and gifts.
Pat Fawdry:
Do you anticipate any particular change in direction as to what you're doing right now?
[0:09:00]
No.
Pat Fawdry:
You've got a good community program going on that we've not taken advantage of, but I've been aware of it.  I wondered if you were gonna make any other change in program; go with any kind of graduate programs of any kind.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, there's talk, now, adding graduate programs, but we don't have any immediate plans for that, no.  Actually, not even long-range commitments.  It's a possibility way down in the future, but there's nothing planned for that now.
B. Caits:
Is policy entirely set by your board?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.
B. Caits:
Is the city automatically represented on it? 
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No.
B. Caits:
By appointment or are you an independent board?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
No, we're an independent board.  It's been that way since the beginning.  Of course we have real close relationships with the city through the department of public service.  

[0:10:00]
That's our liaison, Wallace Maegro is the . . . .
B. Caits:
Does he sit on your board?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
No.  
Pat Fawdry:
 You said that you came in '55.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.
Pat Fawdry:
But you had been here as a student.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
As a student from '32 to '36.
Pat Fawdry:
Okay, but you hadn't lived in Memphis before that time.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
No, no.  No.
Pat Fawdry:
During the years that you were at Southwestern from '55 to '72, what sort of changes did you see then?  As academic dean, you must've seen some different things going on.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, I suppose the chief one was there was some growth – you know, the period of the '60s was quite a – and the '50s, late '50 and '60s, a lot of growth.  It changed from a school of about, a college of about 600 to one of about 1,000.  
[0:11:00]
Then, of course, you had the movements of the '60s.

Pat Fawdry:
Yes.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Interesting period, as the Chinese would say.
B. Caits:
[Crosstalk]  Did you observed –


(Laughter)


Did you observe – what am I trying to say?  General changes in the outlook of the student.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.
B. Caits:
Their orientation towards college education and towards what was going on in the world.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, sure.  Yeah.  When I went there in '55, the great "cat" that was up on everybody's lips was that students were too docile, and they were just heading for some soft career and had no interest in social problems.  
[0:12:00]
They were practical.  The Korean War was just over, I guess.  They asked me to make a convocation address first and the thesis that I will remember was "students ought to take more responsibility for their education and they ought to question things and they ought to not just take it on authority".  All that just went right down the line and, of course, in about two years all that just blew up.

(Laughter)

B. Caits:
You wish you could've taken it back, huh?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, it was just a change, that's all.  The Southwestern was relatively a non-violent kind of a place.  We didn't have any unpleasant, but it was a –
B. Caits:
Understatement of the year.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
There were definite changes.  

[0:13:00]
The students were, of course, much more active and critical all during the '60s.  It was a national phenomenal.
Pat Fawdry:
Wasn't just this one, obviously.  

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, yeah.

Pat Fawdry:
During the time that you lived here, you got in right at the beginning, then, of neighborhood changes, in particular, the freeway controversy.  Tell me what you remember about the early rumblings and the aftermath.  Ms. Jones, you're interest in that, too.  I'd like to get both of yours feelings as to what was going on and how it affected the people living here.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, this street, this neighborhood, was very much like I imagine it was in the 1930s.
[0:14:00]
A lot of children.  They played in the streets.  They played in everybody's yards.  They played out at night after supper.  They just pretty much lived the kind of life that people had been living in a southern sort of city neighborhood, I guess, for 50, 75 years.  There were lots of children. They all went down here to Snowden School.  Everybody walked.  Of course the zoo was nearby and the park.  They'd go over to the park in the spring, and everybody would get these little tadpoles.  


It was just a very quiet and pleasant sort of neighborhood.  'Course the streets were paved, they weren't gravel.  I guess they were originally.  
[0:15:00]
I'm not sure when this – I think this whole place must've been developed right after the First World War, that's my guess.
Pat Fawdry:
In fact, some of it earlier than that.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Was it?
Pat Fawdry:
Uh-huh.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, well the house that used to stand next door, where Evergreen Church built their education building was obviously put up around 1900 or 1890s, something like that.  A lot of the other homes looked like they were built – 

Pat Fawdry:
[Crosstalk]  There was a _____ – most of them were – you're right.  The biggest ____ was.  Yeah.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
So, I guess that what I'm really saying is I got the feeling in '55 that it weren't too different from what it was in '25, say.  I don't know if that's true, but that's my guess.
Pat Fawdry:
Just from the atmosphere and how quiet it was.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.
Pat Fawdry:
There wasn't much building going on 'cause it had been done a long time ago.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Not much, no.  I don't know, I can't think of – Well there'd been one or two places down the street on Forest where a house has gone up since we've been here because – 
[0:16:00]
Well, maybe a house was torn down, or maybe the lot was real big and they just used the extra space.  Then when the Methodists took down this old house right next door and put up their education building.  'Course that was – That's about all, everything else has stayed pretty much the same and the homes have stayed pretty much the same.  I think they look better now than they did in '55.  
Pat Fawdry:
Probably improvements.

B. Caits:
[Crosstalk]  A lot of them have been improved and the residents are all a whole lot older.


(Laughter)

Most of the residents.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right, yeah.
B. Caits:
We do have one or two families on this block that have children, but most of the people, the ones who were living here when we came, of course, are _____ longer than us and ______.
Pat Fawdry:
They're seniors.  Yeah, yeah.  You remember when they took down Glenmary, then.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.
Pat Fawdry:
When was that?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, John, our son John, was about three or four.  

[0:17:00]
He used to go over and play on their dirt piles and all, six maybe.  He was one when we came here, wasn't he?  I'd say they took it down about 1958-1959, '59, 1959, something like that.
Pat Fawdry:
Okay, around about that time, then, all the talk about the freeway started in more, right?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.
Pat Fawdry:
Around '59-'60?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, that's right.
Pat Fawdry:
Okay, what was the people's reaction when it –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well I don't ever remember anybody around here protesting at all, or even talking about it, to tell you the truth.  I knew about it because Southwestern ______, like I said, was a great fighter against it.  I went to one of them meetings, but I didn't ever agitate it one way or another, as I mentioned before, because at that time it was said that – 
[0:18:00]
Somebody even made the threat, "Look, you'd better be quiet or they'll run you down North Parkway and take about 50 feet of you to Southwestern's campus."  Well, that's kind of an ugly situation.  So the long shot was I felt it's one of those political questions that I could hardly speak on without involving the college, so I just didn't say anything.  I think the people here just took it.  

Well, the automobile's undisputed hegemony, or absolute dictatorship, has only been disputed for about 10 years.  But if you go back to 1955, it was just expressways.  People just accepted down the way they do.  The war against Germany, that's just something that's gotta be down.  

[0:19:00]
It wouldn't occur to most people to protest.  
B. Caits:
Neighborhood advocacy and you trying to protest was a thing of the future, too.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
[Crosstalk]  That hadn't started, weren't there.  That's right.
B. Caits:
Maybe this is what triggered it in this neighborhood, which has been a strong neighborhood association area since then.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, yeah, but I really think that it was more the integration that triggered the my for Evergreen that's what got this neighborhood moving.  It was the churches and some people within them that said, "We're not going to just let the worst rule."  I'm confident that's what that was.  I don't think that it was any – You can maybe remember different, but I don't believe there was any sense of neighborhood being because of the express lane, do you?
Sophie Jones:
I can't remember.  I was thinking when they tore all those houses down.
[0:20:00]
Of course, some of them were closed, a block over maybe.  I can't remember anything about that.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No, I can't remember anybody protesting.
Sophie Jones:
Protesting and they were –  [Inaudible Comment]
Dr. Jameson Jones:
[Crosstalk]  I regret it because we had some acquaintances and we hate to see them move away.  Nobody said anything.
B. Caits:
It was accepted and then admirable.  
Sophie Jones:
[Crosstalk]  And they just – yeah.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.  
B. Caits:
It was one of those –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Just one of those things.
Sophie Jones:
It was – Now, it's almost incredible to think that –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
[Crosstalk]  That people would've just –
Sophie Jones:
All of that occurred and it just made no more impression than I can remember.  It was not until much later when people got upset about the park.  I can't really remember much protesting against the express way.  I was thinking when you said that there was one point four or five years ago when they said _____ Park had been, a possible alternate.  


All the people on this street, most people on this street – You remember that at that time.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, we talked about that.  
[0:21:00]
That's when Guy –
Sophie Jones:
Yeah.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, well, go ahead.  They were asking about Guy and I said that's when he really got interested.
Sophie Jones:
And –

Pat Fawdry:
Okay, this is Guy Northrup, N-o-r-t-h-r-u-p?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.
Pat Fawdry:
This was – he –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
I think it's u-p, I always have to check that.
Pat Fawdry:
It's u-p, yeah, it's not a double p, right?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Oh, no.  No.
Pat Fawdry:
Okay, but he lived in the corner –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
No, he lived –
Pat Fawdry:
On Parkway.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
No, he lived on Forest, just in the next block, between Hawthorne and McLean.  
Pat Fawdry:
Oh, that's right.  Yeah, yeah.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
His wife still lives there.
B. Caits:
You were talking, earlier, about finding this house and the circumstances under which you bought it.  Do you know the history of the house back to when it was built?  Do you have papers or pictures or anything?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No, we've got a deed, but I don't have any of that.  
B. Caits:
But you don't know when it was built.
Sophie Jones:
But this family ___ ____ maybe ___ _____ built it.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Did the Jones's build it?
B. Caits:
[Crosstalk]  [Inaudible Comment]

Sophie Jones:
I think they built it.  
[0:22:00]
That's what I was counting on.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, they probably did because their daughter had gone to Southwestern, and just in neighborhood talk and all, they never mentioned anybody else living here.
Sophie Jones:
Yeah, I think they just built and lived in this sort of place.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, and the daughter was grown and married and had children by the time we got here.  The house next door is probably more interesting than this one because it belong to Mr. and Mrs. Arthur Bruce who was the president, at one time, of the Bruce Lumber Company.  I guess that other house is – his brother also lives here, Mr. Leo Bruce.  Lives in Memphis, I mean, or did before his death.  Mr. Arthur Bruce was a prominent early Republican also and he once ran for governor of the state on the Republican ticket.  
[0:23:00]
By the time we moved here he was retired and not taking an active part in lots of things, but he still had a lot of interest.  I think he was interested in lemore and then he was interested in the Boy Scouts and other things like that.  'Course they'd raised a large family.
Pat Fawdry:
What's the number on that house, do you know?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, I never can remember if it was 51 or something like that.
Sophie Jones:
It was in the – We were 47, I think it's 51 'cause the numbers skip a lot.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
51, really.  
Pat Fawdry:
When it's there?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No, it's there.
Pat Fawdry:
I was gonna say it's the Conrad house.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.  So, past his death, Mrs. Bruce lived on for awhile and then she moved away to join her children out west.  She sold the house to Jack Conrad.  He discovered that all the clapboard was cypress, so they took all the paint off because the weather doesn't injure it.  Inside, too, there's nice treatment.  

[0:24:00]
It has nice materials all the way through the house, even nice then.
Sophie Jones:
And the Bruces built it.  

Dr. Jameson Jones:
The Bruces built it, you see.
Pat Fawdry:
Obviously, they had the best lumber.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, imagine, that's just what we speculate, sure.  
B. Caits:
Wouldn't it be unusual for a house to be made out of cypress?

Sophie Jones:
[Crosstalk]  ____ that time ____ ____ ____.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, I think so.  You see them occasionally, yeah.
B. Caits:
[Crosstalk]  Yeah, entire ___ unusual around here.  
Pat Fawdry:
I believe that's 1755.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
It could be.  They have a backyard garage apartment and it has a number and then they have a number, and I don't know whether it's 51 or 55 or what.
Sophie Jones:
They don't ____ you know, long _____.  Far along as you would thing.
Pat Fawdry:
Right.  

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's an interesting house.  The one across the street, the Shoemakers live in, we think is interesting.  I don't know if it has any particular history.  Mary and Ann Shoemaker are – well, they reached retirement age.  
[0:25:00]
When we moved here, their mother still lived with them.  She was a remarkable woman.  You may know her.
B. Caits:
Oh, I do and I did.  Sweet little miss, too.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, she's great.  Well, her husband Dr. Shoemaker was a professor at Southwestern for years.  He was teaching there when I was a student in '32 and had been.  I guess he either came here about the time the college did or maybe he even came – maybe even was on the faculty at ______.  I'm not sure about that.  Their house is – Well, it's kind of an old-fashioned house and has some interest and the proportion's good.  

The one up on the corner, farther, on Hawthorne facing south, is the Lawson house.  George Lawson is an architect, was.  His son, Wells, is an architect now.  Wells is married to – well, doesn't matter about that.
Sophie Jones:
Gwen.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Gwen.  
[0:26:00]
Yeah, and she is interested in the city.  There's some sort of city improvement or something, I don't know.
Pat Fawdry:
It faces Hawthorne?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No, it faces south, it's an edge.
Pat Fawdry:
It faces Forest, obviously.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.  
B. Caits:
Wait, is that the Antominger or ____ ____ ____ ____ _____?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, that's the Antominger house.  But anyway, I just thought I'd mention the assessment halter because – I guess it was Mrs. Lawson – that is Ms. Aintominger's mother who told us, she was still living when we moved here – that her husband and she were just kinda looking for a home and he – well, maybe they weren't looking, but he just noticed it.  He thought that house had real good proportions and the windows was placed right relative to the doors and things like that.  So he bought it, they bought it and he altered – I don't know how much alteration he did, but he may have taken off porches and done things like that.  
[0:27:00]
It has that interest.  Mr. Lawson, who was a prominent architect here, did things to the house.  It is a very substantial, stately-looking sort of a place.
Sophie Jones:
He designed ____ for _____ Church.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Uh-huh, that's right.
Sophie Jones:
And maybe came here for that.  I mean, the –
Pat Fawdry:
Mr. Lawson.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
I don't know.  Maybe he did.  
Sophie Jones:
And then stayed ___ ____ _____.

Pat Fawdry:
We heard that also.  We heard that from another source.  We haven't traced the factuality there of.  
B. Caits:
I know the Jones know this, and I'm sure that this something that is gonna waste tape for me to say, but I'm gonna say it anyway.  Mrs. Antonminger and Wells Lawson – I may have told you this.  In all that stone carving in ______, he had their faces carved __ _____.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
I didn't know, I didn't that.
B. Caits:
Oh, you knew.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No.
B. Caits:
All tells that.  That's true, I've seen them.  They're on the outside, I think they're in that front courtyard and on either side of one of the doors of these two doors.  ___ ___ ____ ____.
[0:28:00]
Well, I'll have to go and look at that, yeah.
B. Caits:
It's the architect's children, which is interesting.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Sure is.
B. Caits:
I think of ____.  ____ _____ want to preserve his children in stone, but a very nice touch.
Pat Fawdry:
Yeah, yeah.

B. Caits:
You said something that sparked interest in a line of thought we've been pursuing in our interviews when you said something about the Bruces, the house behind the Bruces' house.  We discovered that – this may have died out before you came here – we discovered that this neighborhood was really two entirely different neighborhoods.  There were black domestics behind almost every house.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Behind almost every ____
B. Caits:
They were a whole community to themselves.  I'm sure they probably didn't have a sense of community.  They probably didn't know each other.  

[0:29:00]
Did you all ever know any of the families living or any of the servants that lived in the neighborhood?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Not really.
Sophie Jones:
There were none when we moved in.  Now, there was a little room back off our garage.  There had been servants who had lived in there and who had taken care of Mrs. Jones and for a long time.  Probably had lived back there up until the time she left this house.  But as far as I know, there were no –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
I think that's my impression, too.
Sophie Jones:
The Bruces, I think they built – that's the little apartment thing – they built it for their son.  I'm not sure there were ever servants there.
B. Caits:
Well, it would be so interesting if we could find any of these people and talk to them who lived their whole lives behind these big houses.

Sophie Jones:
[Crosstalk]  Yeah, somebody.  Yeah, uh-huh.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, one person that you might locate, maybe.  

[0:30:00]
Before they, or even after they tore down Glenmary, they left standing a rather large frame structure back on the other side of this lot.  It was one of those old green frame structures with maybe white trim, and outside stairs going up to the second floor, that kind of thing.  For several years after we moved here, that man – I don't think that he was married or had a – 
Sophie Jones:
Yeah, I think there – he had a – I think – it was a couple lived there.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, it was couple, then.  They lived there.  They were the – he was sort of the pastor for the church, you see, I guess.  I think he was the pastor.
B. Caits:
He lived here before that also?  I mean, he had been in the neighborhood?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
I don't know.  That's what I don't know.  He was there when we got to here.  He lived there.  He must've – they kept that even past the time they built this educational building.  It was still standing several years afterwards and he was living there.  I'm just guessing.
B. Caits:
Well, from the church, we might be able to trace him.
[0:31:00]
You might find him, see.  
B. Caits:
That's a great lead.  

Dr. Jameson Jones:
I think he must've stayed on, living there, up until about '65 or something like that.  
Pat Fawdry:
Hm, that is a good leady.

Sophie Jones:
[Inaudible Comment]

B. Caits:
He's unlikely to be living.  So many of these people are dead.
Sophie Jones:  
It was on the other side, next to Evergreen.  I can tell you somebody else who – maybe you have mentioned – Ms. Green and her sister.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.
Sophie Jones:
There's been just sort of one generation after another in that house, that same family.  I think maybe their grandfather might have built that house.  It's across the street.
B. Caits:
Which house?

Sophie Jones:
Next to – it's not – it's kind of a grey –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
It's not the brick house, but the one west of it.
B. Caits:
What's the family name, ma'am?

Sophie Jones:
Well, the two – yeah.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Stots and Graham.
B. Caits:
Oh, Thotos?  Somebody told us about them.
Sophie Jones:
Thotos.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Thotos, yeah, I said Stots, Thotos, yeah.
Pat Fawdry:
There's two ladies –
[Audio Break]


Dr. Jameson Jones:
– 'cause they had the dogs.  Ms. Graham and Ms. Thoto, I don't know the tale or anything.  

[0:32:00]
They had several children, now they're all grown.  Well, they have three or four of them.    Anyway, they must love these dogs.  They take them out everyday.  Looks like Eskimos, they got a whole pack of four or five of them.
Sophie Jones:
But anyway, the ____ and the ____, their father, grandfather –

Pat Fawdry:
Their grandfather?

Sophie Jones:
Uh-huh.  Anyway, there's been – they might be able to tell you some things.
B. Caits:
The grandfather built the house?
Sophie Jones:
I'm not sure about that, he may have.  These girls have always lived there.  When they got married, they just lived there together.  They've been in this neighborhood, had some _____, a long time.

Pat Fawdry:
As married ladies?  This married families, the two families lived there.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, that's right.
Pat Fawdry:
The husbands just moved in.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.
Sophie Jones:
Uh-huh.  When we came, 'course in '55 all the children were young, and Mrs. Graham had two daughters and Thotos had six.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
I think.
[0:33:00]
Six.  The husbands and – they were all living there.  There was just a constant stream of little feet going in and out of at house.
B. Caits:
Oh, I bet.  It sounds like a health department show coming to town and having the people for bantering or badgering.  Did you know the grocery up on Poplar?  I can't recall its name.  It was there for 30 years and retired just in the early '70s.  Said he had Bob Whiten.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No.  
B. Caits:
We own, we own –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
We know that store, but we didn't know the –
B. Caits:
[Inaudible Comment]
Sophie Jones:
We went there, but not much.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
You probably know or knew Ms. Pierce.  She died two years ago, I guess now.  She would've known a lot of people, too.  She lived in the bungalow right next the Thotos.  
B. Caits:
Yeah, somebody ___ name, but I didn't –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's Liv Gains' mother.  You know, Liv Gains, goes over to Iowa –
B. Caits:
That's where I've heard the name, is Tony Ginny.  
[0:34:00]
I don't know her, but know the name.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, her mother was Ms. Pierce and she lived in this neighborhood.
B. Caits:
They're on Parkway, aren't they?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.  
Sophie Jones:
They live right around the corner on Parkway.  

Dr. Jameson Jones:
The Gains now live in the old house and her mother lived in this one facing ____.
B. Caits:
[Inaudible Comment]

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.  
B. Caits:
We're all agreeing with several people and told us the main thing that stands out in their mind about the neighborhood is how little it's changed, which just reinforced all these things you talked about, the turnover from one generation to the other.  Even though you said you imagine in '55 it was like it was in '35, it still is more that way, don't you think, than any other –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right, yeah.
B. Caits:
I don't wanna put words in your mouth, but do you agree?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, I think it's relatively the same as it was in '55 now.  
B. Caits:
Uh-huh, which is remarkable.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Except that there are not near as many children.  
B. Caits:
But aren't they coming back?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.  That goes and comes.  

[0:35:00]
It's a case of – it kind of goes in waves.  We happened to come here when there was a whole lot and then it kind of shaded off.  Now, they're kinda coming – I think you're right – they're kinda coming back.  The little ones across the street, they moved in Ms. Pierce's house, they've got two.  There may be a little more movement.  

That's funny how it does – this house right over here, next to the Shoemakers, when we moved here, Jared Blanchert lived there.  He's moved out.  Then the Phillips came; they moved.  Then who followed them?  Did these people, or was it somebody else?
Sophie Jones:
These people.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
The Hutchin – no, that's not them.  Farrells, now the Farrells move in.  Somebody else is coming in there.  The Shoemakers, the Thotos, the Grahams, the Canallis, the Shouzes, us, Charles Young –
[0:36:00]
____ moving at all.  

Sophie Jones:
[Crosstalk]  [Inaudible Comment]
B. Caits:
[Crosstalk] ___ Voucher ___ _____ Shoemakers.  I believe you met Ms. Voucher, didn't you?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
And Ms. Voucher.
Pat Fawdry:
I have tried to call.  Tell me about the – Someone said that the house was considered an economy house or something like that.  Do you know anything about that house?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No, but I know people who admire it.  They think that's a real just attractive house.
Sophie Jones:
[Crosstalk]  I've heard ___ ____ ____ ____.  You really out to talk to her ____ _____.
B. Caits:
[Crosstalk]  ___ ____ it was the Shoemakers, too, who said there was something unusual about her.
Sophie Jones:
There's something unusual about – I've heard, I would not remember well enough to tell. 
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Really?
Pat Fawdry:
Well, I've tried to tell her and I don't know if she's not home –
B. Caits:
Is she dead?

Sophie Jones:
She may be. She's quite elderly and I don't think too well, but she's –
Pat Fawdry:
Who's her daughter?  Marion Jobe, but that doesn't mean anything to me.  Is it J-o-b?  J-o-b-e.
Sophie Jones:
J-o-b-e.  It's Andrew Jobe, but I believe –
Pat Fawdry:
Andrew Jobe, okay.

Sophie Jones:
Marion is her first name.
Pat Fawdry:
Yeah.  Well, I'm gonna try to call.

B. Caits:
You all are gonna get a kick out.  We interviewed Mr. Canalli and that's all – I mean, I just know we're –

[Audio Break]
[0:37:00]
I've said three or four years ago that it was just gonna be closer to us.  ____ by that time had changed towns.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
But also by that time the climate had changed some, too.  Well, I mean to say it was no longer just taken for granted that whatever the highway department engineer said was it, you just took it.  By that time, you'd had a lot of unrest.  You'd had the refrain in the newspapers over and over again.  Well, people losing their confidence in government and in officials.  You can't believe – that has its effect.  People, they question everything a little more than they would've before.  That's my point.  Yeah, I think they do.  

Pat Fawdry:
When it first came up, then, there was as many people who didn't care, probably more who didn't care and accepted it.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Oh, sure, I think so.
Pat Fawdry:
As opposed to people who were up in arms, so the majority.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.  
B. Caits:
They were scared 'cause they didn't realize they had any alternatives.  

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.
[0:38:00]
You see, that's what's changed.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, that and also a kind of conservatism.  If you studied the voting records here, we always looked at our precinct and the majority of people voted kind of conservatism, if that word means anything.  So they would tend to go along with government, all leadership.  I'll tell you one other factor, by the time they had this little flurry of meetings when they suggested running down North Parkway, by that time the different neighborhood improvement groups had already come into being, too.  

Northrup, he already had, as it were, a mailing list and a group of people already in existence.  I bet if you scratched beneath the surface as to who went to the meetings over here to protest the North Parkway thing and all that, you probably won't find, necessarily. The people right in this immediate neighborhood in such great numbers.  

[0:39:00]
It may be in a larger one.  Most of our neighbors, we find to be pretty quiet and reticent about ever –
Pat Fawdry:
Doing any kind of protesting.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.  Yeah.
B. Caits:
But the machinery was in place by the time the issue came up again.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right because you already had the MIFA and you had this welder's group.  
Pat Fawdry:
VECA.
B. Caits:
[Crosstalk]  [Inaudible Comments]

Dr. Jameson Jones:
What?  I don't mean MIFA, I mean VECA.  You also had a – 
Sophia Jones:
There was a mid-Memphis.

B. Caits:
[Crosstalk]  [Inaudible Comments]
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Mid-Memphis, yeah.  That was in the –
Pat Fawdry:
You made a statement a while ago that – I'm sorry, were you gonna –
B. Caits:
No, go on.

Pat Fawdry:
You made a statement awhile ago that I wanted to clue in on.  I think I was saying that maybe they pulled themselves together over the freeway, but I believe you said you felt like they pulled themselves together over the integration question.  
[0:40:00]
I think that's the basis for VECA.  

Pat Fawdry:
Yeah, okay.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
I don't think there's any question about it.  In the early days when it first got started, the driving spirit was the priest from the – there's a priest and a ____, I don't know what the ____ are.  Priest – She's a Catholic sister from this church over here on Jackson.  And then the Evergreen Presbyterian Church.  The McLean Baptist has had a liberal leadership sometime.  Some of the people at Southwester, in the early days, did the printing and the writing up the things and cranking out the meeting announcements and all that.  The group met in churches the first four or five years.
[0:41:00]
They were interested primarily – the reason they cam together was – you can check this out with other people, but my impression was that they wanted – they could see that this neighborhood was one that was of some appeal to black families.  There were already real estate agents who were trying to – as she used to say in those days – engage in blockbusting and all that sort of thing.

These people were trying to preserve Snowden and Vollintine School, and this whole neighborhood with its churches and residences as an integrated.  They didn't want all the white people to run away and it to become a black neighborhood, nor did they want to freeze out the blacks.  They wanted to develop a climate which would allow the possibility of a truly integrated neighborhood.  

[0:42:00]
They tried to say that this involved the economics of the situation, and so from the beginning, they wanted to both trade with local merchants, but also persuade those merchants to look with favor on the integrated thing, you see, and all that.  A conscious effort was made to get the churches behind it.  I think that was the cause for coming together.  It didn't have anything to do with the expressway, I don't think.  I may have missed it.  It may have had then, I just missed it.  I don't remember.
Pat Fawdry:
I think, VECA, you're right.  I think there was a great concern over the integration because apparently there really was some real estate tactics that were not above board, especially in regard to the rulings that had been going on since that time.
[0:43:00]
Did you feel any impact over here from what went on over there?  From all this that you just describe, would you say it had any effect over here of raising people's consciousness to, say, the same thing happened over here?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, yeah.  Yeah.  Not marked or – yeah, some.
B. Caits:
Consciousness.  

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Some, yeah, uh-huh.

B. Caits:
You said something, too, that I wanted to go back to.  You remarked that you looked over the general voting record of this neighborhood, have you seen any marked change in voting attitudes?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No.
B. Caits:
It remains conservative and consistently so?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's the way I see it.  Do you see it?
Sophie Jones:
Uh-huh.  Oh, yeah, even more so lately.  
[0:44:00]
It's strange –
B. Caits:
Do you work at the polls?  Is that how –
Sophie Jones:
I have, yeah.  As far as I know, I may be wrong, there are no black voters at all in this –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
In our precinct.
Sophie Jones:
In our precinct.  
Pat Fawdry:
You've ____ –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, there could be some, I never see any.  I never see any.  
Sophie Jones:
___ the academy.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, they vote at the academy.
Sophie Jones:
If there are any up there.  It's a white, middle-class, older, most of the residents there.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
But you talk about the –
Sophie Jones:
But that's of course – I'm just talking about this precinct goes end of the street down on Parkway.  That's ____ know it's good.  So that's ___ ___.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.
B. Caits:
It would change radically in makeup just over there?

Sophie Jones:
Uh-huh, yeah, uh-huh.

[0:45:00]
You talk about consciousness; I know that whether VECA had anything to do with it or not, I don't know, but about 10 or 12 years ago, Evergreen Presbyterian put in outdoor playgrounds and blacks built a gym.
Sophie Jones:
Built a gym.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
When the change and all, that neighborhood, well, then black children along with white using it.  The same thing's true right here next door.  These Methodists put a – the Trinity Methodist people put up an outdoor basketball court.  We regretted that because for years it was simply a nice old-fashioned playground, you see, and you could play baseball, anything you wanted to.  Have Easter egg hunts.  Some of the neighborhood kids even built a little – if you can imagine – homemade three or four-hole golf course.  I mean, I'm talking about 8, 9, 10-year-old kids.  They used it for all kinds of things.
[0:46:00]
But the Methodists and the _____, I think, put in this basketball goal and concrete.  Now, from daylight to deep darkness, seven days a week, there are blacks, basketball, basketball, basketball, basketball.  I don't know where they drive here from, but they come in cars and they're using it.  

20 years ago, people wouldn't have – First of all the Methodists wouldn't have done it.  I don't mean - not Methodists, but the ___ people are white friends.  Even now, well, it's an irritation, not because they're black, but just that basketball.  

[0:47:00]
Some years ago, I don't think they would've – the people walking around, they wouldn't have stood for that.  
Sophie Jones:
So that is a change.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's a change.  
Pat Fawdry:
Are you saying they wouldn't have stood for it because it would've been white people in the neighborhood?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.  They wouldn't have been disturbed, perhaps, if it'd been whites, but that many blacks just constantly there right in the middle of their little enclave, they wouldn't have – I don't think they would've –
Pat Fawdry:
Are you saying that if the kids were white, they would've been harped on also?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No, I think they would've probably tolerated it.  Well, no, I don't know about that.  If they had been just strictly neighborhood children, no question, they'd have been okay.  But if there had been cars coming in and players from other places using it, maybe if people would've found it in their hearts to say, "Well, they're too noisy," they might not have been as friendly.  I don't know.
[0:48:00]
They probably would've put up with it, is my point.  I don't think they would've – I think they would've found some way to stop it.  
Pat Fawdry:
If it was them?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
If it had been blacks 15 years ago.  
Pat Fawdry:
Yeah.  I see.  There's just more tolerance, period.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
They weren't used to it.  It's just a matter of consciousness.  It would've just been too unusual for them to absorb, see.  
B. Caits:
Can you turn it off?
[Audio Break]


Sophie Jones:
The neighborhood children used to play, around town, baseball or something, somehow.  They were always breaking our windows.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.
Sophie Jones:
It'd be so often, it's routine.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, that's just routine.  
Sophie Jones:
Whereas for now –

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, they couldn't help it.
Sophie Jones:
Oh, yeah, they didn't – they would accept the responsibility.  But now, there are no white children who play baseball.  I guess things are so organized now that they're all in groups, church groups or some other things.
B. Caits:
Leagues.

[0:49:00]
So that there are no children who just really play on their own, that kind of thing.  Now we have the basketball, we don't have broken windows all the time.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.  
Sophie Jones:
It's strange.  

Pat Fawdry:
What do you perceive for any changes coming up in the neighborhood?  Besides what might happen with the freeway, do you see any other changes in direction or anything?  Do you see commercialism creeping in anyplace?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No.  We've got this guy down on McLean between North Parkway and Tutwiler, down there.
Pat Fawdry:
Right across from Snowden?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
They've just been failing miserably.  
[0:50:00]
When we came in '55, they had grocery stores, beauty shops, all that, and a drug store.
Sophie Jones:
That is a real change.
Pat Fawdry:
There's nothing there.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, ___ _____.
Sophie Jones:
I know that there were two, there were three really good grocery stores down there and they delivered.  I remember –
Pat Fawdry:
This was over there on Mclean, across from Snowden?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, yeah.
Pat Fawdry:
Okay.

Sophie Jones:
Yeah.  I can remember the one that I started with first was there right across from Snowden School.  I think it's a storage place now for circuit plans or something.  It was a really good grocery.  You called in the morning if you just wanted to buy a few things and they'd bring it right up here.  


Then he did close and I moved to the one on the corner which the Shalzes ran.  Ms. Shalzes lives down in ___ _____, Spanish-looking house.  Then they closed eventually, too, see.  Then there was Garavellis which was further on down.

[0:51:00]
I never really went there much.  Of course it's changed hands.  It still exists, but I don't know how it exists.  I guess there's some people down in the neighborhood who use it, but I don't know how it keeps on.  That's been a real change.
Pat Fawdry:
Yeah.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
_____ who runs _____ Exxon station down there right across from Snowden School.
Pat Fawdry:
Yeah.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Told me the other day that the Exxon tried to get him to move up to this one on Poplar and make him close that one.
Sophie Jones:
Oh really?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
He said, no, he didn't want to go to up there on Poplar.  It's a big, 24-hour day kind of proposition.  So they said okay.  They had it as he is in the ______.  They'd probably allow him to keep it and run it as long as he's living, but we he – they'd close that.  That's the commercial.
[0:52:00]
Southwestern up there.  Snowden School, there's this little flurry around there, but it's no good.  I mean, it can't survive.  Then you've got North Parkway, they gonna resist anything.  Right around here you're close enough to cats and all that scags or whatever.  I can't see that we're really – I don't think anybody would want to try to open a commercial enterprise around here.
Pat Fawdry:
It would be stoned.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
He wouldn't have met the market analysis.  

(Laughter)
Sophie Jones:
That's on Third, maybe you all saw it, too, I was looking for it and wanted to show it to our daughter.  That Jim Williamson, maybe you all saw it.
Pat Fawdry:
It's on page 33.

Sophie Jones:
Is it on –
B. Caits:
We've gone there before.  
Sophie Jones:
Oh, were you.  

[0:53:00]
Well, I'm sorry, I didn't know.

B. Caits:
No.

Pat Fawdry:
No, that's okay.  

Sophie Jones:
Anyway, I guess it must have happened really in the Overton Park.  
Pat Fawdry:
Yeah, the reference is to an article that came out this morning that the Tennessee Committee had voted unanimously to try to push Overton Park as – to put it on National Registry of Historic Places.  It's unusual, I think, that it goes through one vote and it's through and you don't have rehearings and all that sort of thing.  Now it just goes to Washington with that kind of backing.  I think he felt fairly comfortable that there would be no problems.
Sophie Jones:
That's what that seemed to me.  
Pat Fawdry:
Talked with him last night after they got back and they were ecstatic over the reception they have received from that vote.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's marvelous.
B Caits:
Even though it's out of this neighborhood, it keeps coming back up in our conversation.
[0:54:00]
Do you think that Southwestern, as an institution just being there and so close here, has had a really sizeable input on this neighborhood as a stabilizing and enriching input?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No question.
B. Caits:
Because of the people connected with the school, who have lived here more than anything else, all through this neighborhood?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, that certainly is yeah.  Yeah.  I remember when I was a student here.  Well, Shoemakers were here.  Dr. Storm was up the street.  Yeah, it's been a constant, as it were –

B. Caits:
Presence, so presence.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Presence of individuals, yeah, who worked there.  But also it's just the radiation of the – it just gives it a kind of prestige.  
[0:55:00]
I think, this neighborhood has never been, historically, the select or good neighborhood, say, that over across near Peabody and Central, those similar streets over there like them and all that, so far as wealth's concerned.  I think the fact the Southwestern is here – ah well, "Yeah, where do you live?"  "Well, right out there by Southwestern."  There's no question, in my mind.  It makes a difference.  
B. Caits:
The whole road.  

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.

Pat Fawdry:
All right, has the reverse been true up in the VECA area, then?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
What?

Pat Fawdry:
Has the reverse been true up in the VECA area?  We talked about the integration situation, is Southwestern's presence something that has slowed besting or whatever?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
I think VECA slowed it.
Pat Fawdry:
But not necessarily Southwestern.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
No, I can't see it –
Pat Fawdry:
Perhaps the people at Southwestern had a hand in it, but it's –
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah.  Yeah, that's right.  That's the way I look at that.
[0:56:00]
Don't you think a third element, the physical presence, the aura, the third thing is the very fact that that large a tract of land that Southwestern is is not able to be developed, changed, fluctuate, as a real estate entity.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
That's right.  It's fixed.  That's right.  That's right.  
B. Caits:
Which makes the pool a little calmer all the way around, I should think.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
I think so.  You know, nobody's –
B. Caits:
I never realized, until we talked, how much it probably has affected the history of this neighborhood.  Go ahead.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, I was just gonna enlarge on what you said.  Yeah, I think people may not bring it to consciousness, but the fact that you got 100 acres, whatever it is over there, that you know are not gonna be developed into a shopping center or fast food place.  Moreover, you know that the people over there are gonna be fighting all the time to keep fast food places out of the neighborhood as well as all the rental properties.  That gives a little – you gotta put a strong ally in your neighborhood, in other words.  
[0:57:00:]
If you can nestle – that's the reason I've always been glad to be next door to the church.  They're gonna be interested in the neighborhood.
Pat Fawdry:
Sure.  

[Audio Break]
Dr. Jameson Jones:
But Charlie Warren, the dean of Southwestern moved in, he lives two houses from the corner of Evergreen – I guess two houses – facing Forest.  I don't know what he paid for his house.  Anyway, the asking price – It's a big two-story frame house, but somebody told us the asking price is – what'd they say, $90,000.00?
Sophie Jones:
$75,000.00.

Dr. Jameson Jones:
$75,000.00, but anyway, this house is astronomical.  When we moved in '55, the – Well, the real estate, I think it'd be safe to say it's quadrupled.
[0:58:00]
So that a house – If you paid X dollars in '55, you could sell it for 4X now.  
Pat Fawdry:
Yeah.

B. Caits:
That'd be interesting.

Pat Fawdry:
Do you have any feel for this neighborhood in comparison with others?
Dr. Jameson Jones:
No, I don't know nothing about.  Have you talked with Ms. Ross who lives down here on the – she's a real estate woman.
Pat Fawdry:
Mrs. Ross?

Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, that's her name.
Pat Fawdry:
Where does she live?

Sophie Jones:
In the Jones.  She lives in the second house from the corner.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Well, let's see, the Conrads are next to us, and then the Youngs are next to the Conrads, and she's in the next one.  Yeah, it's the second to the last.
Sophie Jones:
On this side of the street.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Yeah, before you get to the corner.  It's built out of natural stone.  She deals in real estate.  They've just been living there five or six years.
Sophie Jones:
Yeah, but she lived in one of those houses on Overton Park.
Dr. Jameson Jones:
They was moving?
Sophie Jones:
Until now.  
Dr. Jameson Jones:
Oh, she did?
Sophie Jones:
So she might be able to –
[End of Audio]
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